
                  AGENDA FOR  
CITY COUNCIL MEETING  

Council Chambers 
                                                                                                          401 E Third Street 

Kewanee, Illinois 61443 
Open Meeting starting at 7:00 p.m. 

Monday, January 8, 2018 
 

Posted by 5:45 p.m., January 5, 2018 
 
 

1. Call to Order 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 

3. Consent Agenda 

a. Approval of Minutes  
b. Payroll 
c. Staff Reports  

4. Presentation of Bills and Claims 

5. Citizen Participation 

6. Business: 

 

a. Consideration of a Resolution authorizing the construction of a memorial in Veteran’s Park to the 
service members of the Vietnam War.   
 

7. Council Communications: 
 

8. Announcements:  
 

9. Adjournment 

 



 

 
 

 MEMORANDUM 
 
Date: January 5, 2018 
From: Gary Bradley, City Manager 
To: Mayor & Council 
RE:       Council Meeting of Monday, January 8, 2018 
 
 
REGULAR MEETING AT 7:00 P.M. 
 
 
1. Light Agenda – You may have noticed the light agenda, which is typical for this time of 

year, as the holidays limit the amount of time in the workplace and year-end projects 
consume staff time.  For me, the enterprise zone also limited my ability to work on other 
things.  The bonus of the light agenda is that you have less to read during the start of the 
NFL playoffs and may be able to catch part of the NCAA Championship Game.   

 
2. Ambulance Billing RFP – The City issued a request for proposals for Ambulance Billing 

last year.  Responses are due back by February 2nd, and we expect a good response due to 
contacts that have already been received from prospective vendors.  

 
3. Enterprise Zone – Thankfully, the Enterprise Zone application is complete and in the 

hands of DCEO.  I don’t expect to hear much from them for a while regarding the selection 
process.  In working to develop a plan B, I’ve found that in previous years the applications 
weren’t given the same level of scrutiny, as many of the zones in place have little realistic 
hope of creating the number of jobs and amount of investment that are required to obtain 
zone approval.  I have a conference call next week on the potential statutory changes.   

   
4. State of the City – I provided something like a “State of the City” update this week to 

Kiwanis as the program speaker on Wednesday.  The presentation was a recap of my 2016 
presentation that identified the then recent adoption of goals, mission, and the survey that 
was out at the time, the 2017 presentation where I discussed the survey results, community 
and economic development plans, newly adopted incentive programs, and focus on 
customer service, and that in 2018 I was happy to report your recent reduction of the levy, 
the use of the incentive programs to complete façade improvements in the Downtown Area, 
Minor Home Repairs in residential neighborhoods, and a continued effort to use the survey 
results to guide our service delivery.  I talked about some of the expectations for the coming 
year and how optimistic I am that we’re on right path.  The presentation appeared to be 
well received, and several people expressed their appreciation for the efforts that we are 
making.     

 
 
 
 



 
 

5. Representative Bustos Visit— Congresswoman Cheri Bustos will be in Kewanee on 
Saturday, January 6th at the Library to present a Congressional Record to Etta LaFlora and 
the City of Kewanee on being named a finalist for the 2017 Governor’s Hometown Award. 
She is extremely proud of the work involved in the project and wants to show her 
appreciation.  

 
6. Fire Department Hiring– The City is developing a new two-year hiring list in the 

event that openings become available during that period.  Applications are due at 4:00 
PM, Friday, January 26.  Written testing is scheduled to be conducted on February 24, 
with physical testing planned for March 24th.  Interviews of qualified candidates who 
pass both the written and physical tests will then be scheduled.  The hiring list is expected 
to be finalized by the Police and Fire Commission in May. 

 
7. Tag Days — Employees of the Kewanee Life Skills Re-Entry Center have proposed a "tag 

days" type of event to help them raise money for the Polar Bear Plunge in support of Special 
Olympics.  When they determine a date, the item will be placed on the consent agenda for 
consideration at the next meeting. 

    
8. Collective Bargaining — The City will soon begin negotiations with the Fraternal Order 

of Police on a new collective bargaining agreement. I have reached out to Jay Titus, the 
FOP field representative, to ensure that our calendars are aligned for bargaining sessions. 
Jay will be meeting with the union members later this month to discuss their goals for the 
bargaining sessions and then propose a schedule.  I'll keep you informed as the process 
moves forward.   

 
9. Raffle – I was contacted by a resident about an idea to raise money for a project in the 

community.  He indicated that in Amboy, the City sells 50/50 raffle tickets all year and the 
winner is drawn at an annual event they have, which I suspect is something akin to Hog 
Days.  I think such a program could be useful to fund home improvements through 
Rebuilding Together or Downtown Improvements like improved streetscaping.  I’d like 
your thoughts on a similar contest, and ideas for the use of the proceeds.  Feel free to call, 
text, email, or drop off your thoughts.  I’ll compile them all and summarize the information 
to see whether or not it’s something we’d like to pursue.     

 
10. Amtrak Meeting – There will be an Amtrak Meeting in Princeton on January 23rd at 11:00 

AM.  Additional information will be provided when it becomes available.   
 
11. Code Amendments – There are proposed amendments to the City’s Code of Ordinances 

that will be given to you on Monday to review.  They will be placed on the agenda for the 
next meeting for discussion and feedback, and then will be brought to your consideration 
at a later meeting (the date of which depends on the extent of the changes and your 
feedback).   

 
 



 1 

COUNCIL MEETING 17-24 
DECEMBER 26, 2017 

 
The City Council met in Council Chambers at 7:00 PM with the Mayor calling the meeting to 
order and the following answering to roll call: 
   
  Andy Koehler  Council Member 
  Mike Yaklich  Council Member 
  Steve Faber  Council Member 
  Chris Colomer  Council Member 
  Steve Looney  Mayor 
 
Mayor Looney called the regular Council Meeting to order at 7 PM, stating that the Council was 
reconvening following a work session to discuss street maintenance. 
 
News media present was as follows: 
 
  Mike Helenthal    Star Courier 
              
The Pledge of Allegiance was said. 
 
Mayor Looney asked for a moment of silence for our troops still fighting overseas.   
 
Mayor Looney explained that the next items were placed on the consent agenda and were considered 
to be routine in nature to be passed as a whole with one vote of the Council. Mayor Looney 
requested that any member of the Council or the audience wishing to have an item removed from the 
consent agenda for individual consideration to make the request and the item would be removed and 
considered following the approval of the remaining consent items.  The consent agenda included 
minutes from the December 11, 2017 Council Meeting, payroll for the pay period ending December 
23, 2017 in the amount of $192,240.32, reports from Finance & Administrative Services, Bock, Inc., 
and the Health Insurance Fund.  The consent agenda was approved on a motion made by Council 
Member Yaklich and seconded by Council Member Faber.  Roll call showed 5 ayes, no nays.  The 
motion passed. 
 
Bills submitted for approval totaling $423,934.63 were approved on a motion made by Council 
Member Faber and seconded by Council Member Colomer.  Roll call showed 5 ayes, no nays.  The 
motion passed.   
 
CITIZEN PARTICIPATION 
 
Mayor Looney then asked if anyone wished to speak regarding a non-agenda item.  There being no 
such requests Mayor Looney moved on to new business.   
 
 
 



 2 

NEW BUSINESS 
 
Resolution #5088 authorizing the City Manager, Mayor, Attorney, and Clerk to execute the 
appropriate documents to obtain ownership of the remaining land in the Kentville Industrial Park 
from the KEDC and amending the budget was approved on a motion made by Council Member 
Colomer and seconded by Council Member Faber.  After some discussion regarding the parcel 
genealogy and the proposed use of the land by the Department of Corrections, Council Member 
Koehler expressed some reservations.  Roll call showed 4 ayes, no nays, with Council Member 
Koehler voting present.  The motion passed. 
 
Minutes of the Zoning Board of Appeals from its meeting held on December 20, 2017 were 
accepted on a motion by Council Member Yaklich and seceded by Council Member Faber.  Roll 
call showed 5 ayes, no nays. The motion passed. 
 
Ordinance #3914 granting a request for variance to Kalvin and Diane Peart, 1009 N Burr Street 
to allow an addition on the east side of the current house was approved on a motion made by 
Council Member Faber and seconded by Council Member Colomer.  Roll call showed 5 ayes, no 
nays.  The motion passed. 
 
Minutes of the Plan Commission from its meeting held on December 21, 2017 were accepted on 
a motion made by Council Member Colomer and seconded by Council Member Koehler.  Roll 
call showed 5 ayes, no nays.  The motion passed. 
 
Ordinance #3914 granting a rezoning request to Jon DeBord, 110 E Tenth Street from R-2, One-
Family Dwelling to B-3, Business and Wholesale was approved on a motion made by Council 
Member Yaklich and seconded by Council Member Colomer.  Community Development 
Director Edwards confirmed at the request of Council Member Yaklich that any additional 
buildings placed on the lot would need a building permit.  Mr. DeBord reported that he plans to 
purchase the parking lot across the street to the south.  Roll call showed 5 ayes, no nays.  The 
motion passed. 
 
Resolution #5089 authorizing the City Manager to enter into an agreement with Michlig Energy 
for the purchase of automotive fuel for Calendar Year 2018 was approved on a motion made by 
Council Member Faber and seconded by Council Member Yaklich.  Facilities Manager Newton 
reported that of the total gallons of fuel approximately 35,000 gallons would be gasoline.  Roll 
call showed 5 ayes, no nays.  The motion passed. 
 
Ordinance #3915 amending Ordinance #3436 to amend the Sexual Harassment Policy of the City 
of Kewanee as required by Public Act #100-0554 on a motion made by Council Member Faber 
and seconded by Council Member Colomer.  Roll call showed 5 ayes, no nays.  The motion 
passed. 
 
 
 
 
 



 3 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 
Council Member Colomer stated that he was excited to buy the land and the potential benefits to 
the City with the expansion of the Life Skills Reentry Center.  He thanked the KEDC and IDOC 
for their partnership in the project.  He also wished everyone a safe new year. 
 
Council Member Koehler asked about the excess ambulances.  Fire Chief Shook reported that 
the ambulances had not yet been sold.  He did report the he had reached out to Neponset and they 
had not responded to the offer.  Chief Shook also noted that the percentage of assist calls to 
Neponset had declined. 
 
Council Member Yaklich asked Chief Shook how the new ambulances were working out.  Chief 
Shook reported favorably.  Council Member Yaklich noted his shared enthusiasm over the IDOC 
project and land acquisition.  He also noted the road race that would be held on Sunday, 
December 31, 2017 and their need for some assistance.  Council Member Yaklich then reminded 
residents to park off the street following the accumulation of snow. 
 
Council Member Faber echoed the sentiments of Council Members Colomer and Yaklich in 
regard to the KEDC and IDOC partnership with the City for the land acquisition.  He also 
reminded residents not to throw snow in the street while clearing sidewalks and driveways. 
 
Council Member Koehler thanked the trash route guys for their assistance when he was unable to 
get his garbage to the curb. 
 
Mayor Looney reported that the heat had been repaired at the train depot.  He acknowledged the 
final meeting of the year and thanked Council and staff for all their efforts through the year. 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
City Clerk Edwards announced that the City had some difficulty with the recycling truck that 
morning, and recycling would be collected the following day.  City Hall offices would be closed 
on Monday, January 1, 2018, in observance of New Year’s Day.  There would be no change to 
the regular trash collection schedule.  Christmas Trees – void of any decorations, tree stands, or 
plastic bags would be picked up on December 29 and January 5th. 
 
There being no further business, Council Member Yaklich moved to adjourn the meeting and 
Council Member Faber seconded the motion.  Roll call showed 5 ayes, no nays.  The meeting 
adjourned at 7:38 PM. 
 
___________________________________________         ________________________________  
MELINDA EDWARDS, CITY CLERK   DATE APPROVED 



City of Kewanee Community Development Department
Demolition, Building Maintenance, Targeted Home Repair

Pictures 
on file

Additional 
Follow-up 

Needed

Proactive    
Or      

Complaint
Mo Day Yr  Yes / No  Yes / No P / C

Aldrich John 813 W Fourth St 11 29 17 DANGEROUS BUILDING

Fast Track demolition 
process initiated. 1/3/18 
RFP drafted. P

Costin John 304 W Fifth St 12 21 17 DANGEROUS BUILDING

Demo Grant was applied for 
and demo permit was 
issued.  Building demolition 
in process.

Disposition Follow-Up Notes
Date of 

NTA
NTA 

Result

Suffix 
(St, 
Ave, 
Blvd) Phone #

Date
Last Name First Name House #

.N 
S 
E 

W. Street Name



7-Day Page 2

Page 2 of 4

City of Kewanee Community Development Department
Nuisance Tracking   Trash/Junk/Litter/Inoperable&Abandoned Vehicles

17-000175 WILLIAMS, ERNEST L 1035 TERRY AVE 12/01/2017 Unsafe, Unsightly Structures Wood shed falling down. Phone
17-000175 WILLIAMS, ERNEST L 1035 TERRY AVE 12/01/2017 Littering Tree on shed Phone
17-000176 GERLEMAN, BRANDON C 435 WEST MILL ST 12/01/2017 Littering Furniture on front porch of indoor type. Staff Initiated
17-000177 WARREN, JEFFREY M EST 1106 MADISON 12/01/2017 Littering General yard clean up. Junk and trash. Phone
17-000178 SUNQUIST, MARCIA KULL- & DAVID L 527 EAST ST S 12/05/2017 Storage and parking of vehicles and other personal property Large truck in yard. Not in drive. Phone
17-000179 LONGEVILLE, LANCE A RLTR 225 Tenney 12/05/2017 Littering Trash and litter in yard and porch. Staff Initiated
17-000180 GEHLING, KIMBERLY L 347 EAST DIVISION ST 12/05/2017 Littering Trash and litter in yard Staff Initiated
17-000181 STEAD, TIMOTHY A 125 Beach 12/05/2017 Littering Trash and litter in yard Staff Initiated
17-000182 SIAMANTOURAS, GUS 442 HOLLIS ST 12/05/2017 Storage and parking of vehicles and other personal property Unlicensed/inoperable vehicle(s) Staff Initiated
17-000184 BROWN, GREGORY 220 EAST 6TH ST 12/06/2017 Storage and parking of vehicles and other personal property Unlicensed/inoperable vehicle(s) van with     Staff Initiated
17-000185 MARTINEZ, TITO A & JOSEFA 912 WEST 4TH ST 12/06/2017 Storage and parking of vehicles and other personal property Unlicensed/inoperable vehicle(s) with tires Staff Initiated
17-000186 FEUCHT, EARL W & MARGARET L 320 Boss 12/06/2017 Unsafe, Unsightly Structures Wood shed falling down. Staff Initiated
17-000186 FEUCHT, EARL W & MARGARET L 320 Boss 12/06/2017 Littering Trash and litter in yard back yard. Staff Initiated
17-000187 MEEKER, KENNETH L JR & AUTUMN 626 WEST 4TH ST 12/06/2017 Littering Junk on side of home and general yard cle  Staff Initiated
17-000188 HODGE, WILLIE M 726 Dewey 12/06/2017 Littering Trash and junk around home.concrete pile     Staff Initiated
17-000189 SANTANA, JOSE A & LYDIA 229 EAST MILL ST 12/07/2017 Storage and parking of vehicles and other personal property Unlicensed/inoperable vehicle(s) Phone
17-000189 SANTANA, JOSE A & LYDIA 229 EAST MILL ST 12/07/2017 Littering General yard clean up. Phone
17-000190 ECHEVERRIA, MARTIN OCHOA 302 N East 12/07/2017 Littering Trash and litter in yard all sides of home ge   Staff Initiated
17-000191 HUGHES, MICHAEL J 306 N East 12/07/2017 Littering Trash and litter in yard. General clean up o   Staff Initiated
17-000192 WILLEY, SHEILA A 318 N East 12/07/2017 Littering Trash and litter in yard all sides of home Staff Initiated
17-000193 DAILEY, DELORES F 322 N East 12/07/2017 Littering Junk around home.front and back. Genera    Staff Initiated
17-000194 JOSLYN, CANDY & MALLERY, DANIEL 601 EAST 5TH ST 12/07/2017 Littering Junk around home.front and back. Genera    Staff Initiated
17-000195 FEUCHT, EARL & MARGARET L 1018 HARRISON 12/07/2017 Littering INDOOR SOFA OUTSIDE Staff Initiated
17-000196 CALHOUN, MATTHEW L 233 PAYSON 12/08/2017 Littering Sofa at street Staff Initiated
17-000197 BICKERS, EDD 814 MAY ST 12/08/2017 Littering junk on side of home. Staff Initiated
17-000198 JOHNSON, GERALDINE 801 WEST DIVISION 12/11/2017 Littering Furniture on side of home of indoor type. Staff Initiated
17-000199 AMAN, CHARLOTTE R 1222 PINE ST 12/11/2017 Littering Junk on side of home and by garage. Staff Initiated
17-000200 CARDOSO, NICOLAS & JIMENEZ, LUCIA C 807 NORTH CHESTNUT ST 12/11/2017 Littering Jjunk in back yard. Staff Initiated
17-000201 BAKER, RENEE 810 MAY ST 12/12/2017 Littering Junk on side of home and general yard cle  Staff Initiated
17-000202 PIANOWSKI, ALAN J & JUDITH A LTR 712 EAST 9TH ST 12/12/2017 Littering Junk in back yard. Staff Initiated
17-000203 NELSON, HELEN 119 EAST OAK ST 12/13/2017 Littering Junk on side of home and general yard cle        
17-000204 MCCOMMONS, PATRICK R 531 ELLIOTT ST 12/13/2017 Littering Trash and litter in yard Staff Initiated
17-000205 HULSLANDER, WAYNE J 323 WEST DIVISION ST 12/13/2017 Littering General yard clean up. Front yard and arou   Staff Initiated
17-000206 MEDINA, JORGE 201 PAYSON ST 12/13/2017 Littering Back yard clean up. Staff Initiated
17-000207 FAVELA, BENITO & MARTINEZ, AUSENCIA 131 EAST OAK 12/14/2017 Littering Junk on side of home and general yard cle  Staff Initiated
17-000208 WYANT, ANGELA M 201 EAST OAK ST 12/14/2017 Storage and parking of vehicles and other personal property Unlicensed/inoperable vehicle(s) with flat Staff Initiated
17-000208 WYANT, ANGELA M 201 EAST OAK ST 12/14/2017 Littering Junk around home.front and back. Genera       Staff Initiated
17-000209 STRODE, LINDA S 223 EAST MCCLURE 12/14/2017 Littering Junk by garage Staff Initiated
17-000210 CRAIG, HARLAN C 212 EAST COLLEGE 12/14/2017 Storage and parking of vehicles and other personal property Boat and trailer in back yard. Staff Initiated
17-000210 CRAIG, HARLAN C 212 EAST COLLEGE 12/14/2017 Littering Trash and junk around home Staff Initiated
17-000211 HULSLANDER, JAMES W 140 SMITH ST 12/14/2017 Littering Junk on side of home and general yard cle  Staff Initiated
17-000212 TYE, EDWIN A 150 SMITH ST 12/14/2017 Littering General yard clean up. Staff Initiated
17-000213 HARTMAN, JOHN 209 HILLCREST DR 12/14/2017 Littering Junk by garage and home ac trash bag and    Staff Initiated
17-000214 JOHNSTON, YANNA MAY 247 WEST GARFIELD 12/14/2017 Littering Chair at curb Staff Initiated
17-000215 MORAN, CARLOS F 428 EAST CHURCH 12/15/2017 Littering Tree trunk down. Unsafe Staff Initiated
17-000216 GERLEMAN, BRANDON C 907 WEST MILL ST 12/18/2017 Storage and parking of vehicles and other personal property inoperable car n yard with wheel missing Staff Initiated
17-000216 GERLEMAN, BRANDON C 907 WEST MILL ST 12/18/2017 Littering Garbage and trash around garage. Staff Initiated
17-000217 LEWIS, JACQUELINE M 223 ELLIOTT ST 12/27/2017 Littering Sofa at street and trash around home. Staff Initiated
17-000218 COX, GRAYCE B 711 WEST PROSPECT 12/27/2017 Littering Furniture. At curb.. Staff Initiated
17-000219 NEUBERT, SHAYNE W 249 WEST MCCLURE 12/27/2017 Unsafe, Unsightly Structures Tree on garage. Staff Initiated
17-000220 CORRAL, JOSE PEREDA 519 NORTH GRACE 12/27/2017 Littering General yard clean up. All sides. Staff Initiated
17-000221 VANDAELE, CATHERINE L & DOUGLAS W 414 WEST 1ST ST 12/28/2017 Littering Bed at curb. Staff Initiated

File Number Owner Name
House 

#
.N S E 

W. Street Name

Suffix 
(St, 
Ave, 
Blvd) Inspection Comments

How 
Received

Phone 
# Open Date Violation Short Description



Weeds Page 3

Page 3 of 4

City of Kewanee Community Development Department
Weed Notice Tracking

Phone #House # Open DateFile Number Owner Name How Received
Violation Short 

Description Inspection Comments
.N S E 

W. Street Name

Suffix 
(St, 
Ave, 
Blvd)



Community Development EOM Report.xls Page 4

Page 4 of 4

City of Kewanee Community Development Department
Miscellaneous Activity

Mo Day YrLast Name First Name
Mid 
Init Phone #

Date Of 
Incident

Incident Description
House 

#

.N 
S E 
W. Street Name / Location

Suffix 
(St, 
Ave, 
Blvd)



 

     Community Development Department 

     401 E Third St 

     Kewanee, IL. 61443 
         

Everything You Need! 
  Phone 309-852-2611, Ext. 222 

     Fax 309-856-6001 
 

 

December 30, 2017 
 
To:  Gary Bradley, City Manager 
From:  Keith Edwards, Director of Community Development 
Subject:  December ESDA Report 
 
 
December 5:  Siren Tests. All tested OK. 
 
December 7:  NOAA Weather Radio received from the NWS office in the Quad Cities.  Radio will be 
installed in my office at City Hall. 
 
 
 
 





















     
 

 
                                                      
 
 

November 2017 
Public Works Department Report 

 
The Sanitation Division picked up 539,920 lbs of curbside garbage, 71,100 lbs of curbside recycling 
and 18,420 lbs of curbside landscape waste in the month of November 2017.    
 
The Water Division replaced 3 curbstops and repaired 5 leaking water service lines.  The Water 
Division repaired 2 water main breaks.  They delivered 113 red tag notices that resulted in 19 water 
services being shut-off at the curbstop.  Of those delinquent accounts 14 have been paid and service 
re-instated.  Water staff terminated 1 water services that made the list of properties that are up for 
demolition.  The water Division replaced 2 fire hydrants.   The water staff replaced 56 mxu/meters 
and 101 had customer water service or account transfers. The water crew preformed 11 leak checks 
for water account customers. The water division had 8 after hour’s customer assist service calls.  The 
water division staff assisted the water loss survey technician 2 days and found 2 leaking service lines 
and have replaced both of the lines.  
 
The Street Division picked up 57 cubic yards of bulk brush.  The Sewer Division replaced a 30’ 
section of mainline sewer on W. First St., replaced 2 sewer laterals on W. 1st Street. The 
Street/Sewer handled 6 after hour’s customer assist service calls. Both the Street and Sanitation 
Divisions have been re-establishing the right of ways and replacing sidewalks after sewer repairs and 
tree removals. The Street Division re-instated the road surface on Madison after Ratliffs had 
installed the second conflict manhole.  The Street crew mounted all of the salt boxes in the plow 
trucks. The Street crew rebuilt the manhole and installed a new storm inlet at 4th and Chestnut. 
 
The Sewer camera crew has been cleaning and televising trouble areas in order to determine if the 
needed repairs can be done with the cipp technology or conventional spot repair method. (14 more 
that need viewed) 
 
Public works located 164 utility Julie locates for the Julie 1 call system. 
 
 
 
Rod Johnson 
Public Works Operation Manager 
 



















  Item A 

CITY OF KEWANEE 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

MEETING DATE January 8, 2018 

RESOLUTION OR 
ORDINANCE NUMBER 

Resolution #5090 

AGENDA TITLE Consideration of a Resolution authorizing the 
construction of a memorial in Veteran’s Park to 
service members of the Vietnam Conflict 

REQUESTING 
DEPARTMENT 

Administration 

PRESENTER Gary Bradley, City Manager 

FISCAL INFORMATION Cost as 
recommended: 

$0 

Budget Line Item: N/A 

Balance Available N/A 

New Appropriation 
Required: 

[ ] Yes  [X] No 

PURPOSE Authorizes the construction of a memorial in 
Veteran’s Park to service members of the Vietnam 
Conflict.   



  Item A 

BACKGROUND City staff was contacted by the Superintendents of 
both school districts regarding a proposed memorial 
to residents of Kewanee who served during the 
Vietnam Conflict.  Both districts had been 
approached by a veteran who, with a background in 
civil engineering, has designed a memorial that 
tastefully commemorates service in each branch of 
the military.  At the request of the districts, the City 
then met with the memorial’s proponent to see if 
Veteran’s Park might serve as a more suitable 
location.   
The proposed design of the memorial would provide 
a sustainable monument, the placement of which 
would not interfere with activities that occur in the 
park.  All necessary funds have already been raised 
for the construction of the memorial, which would 
take less than a month to complete.  If approved, the 
memorial would be completed this spring.  An aerial 
representation, cross section, and examples of the 
proposed pavers to be used are included in your 
packets.     

SPECIAL NOTES N/A 

ANALYSIS The veteran who has served as a proponent of the 
memorial felt like either of the schools would serve as 
a good location for the piece, because students could 
walk past the names engraved in the bricks and 
develop an appreciation for the men and women from 
Kewanee who served this country during a time of 
war.  While I understand that rationale, there were 
difficulties in placing the memorial at each of the 
facilities, and the rationale behind the memorial might 
not have been fully achieved.  Additionally, a 
Kewanee graduate might not think to look at 
Wethersfield for a memorial to a loved one, or vice 
versa.  Veteran’s Park provides a more natural 
location for such a memorial than would either of the 
high school properties.   

STAFF RECOMMENDATION Staff recommends approval 

REFERENCE DOCUMENTS 
ATTACHED 

Proposed design documents – list of names 
determined to date that the memorial would include 

 



RESOLUTION NO. 5090 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CONSTRUCTION OF A MEMORIAL IN VETERAN’S 
PARK TO SERVICE MEMBERS OF THE VIETNAM CONFLICT, AND DECLARING THAT THIS 

RESOLUTION SHALL BE IN FULL FORCE IMMEDIATELY. 
 
WHEREAS, Veteran’s Park is a suitable location for memorials to our service members who provide 

service to our country both during times of peace and war; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City has been asked for permission to construct a memorial to the service members 

of the Vietnam Conflict in Veteran’s Park at no cost to the City; and 
 
WHEREAS,  the placement of the monument will not interfere with activities that occur or are 

expected to occur in Veteran’s Park; and 
 
WHEREAS,  The Kewanee City Council encourages all citizens to embrace and fully support the life, 

service, and full measure of devotion given by the millions of brave men and women that 
have forgone their personal convenience to serve their Country and to protect the greater 
good of the people of the United States of America. 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE KEWANEE CITY COUNCIL, IN COUNCIL 
ASSEMBLED, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1 The City Council hereby finds that the construction of a Vietnam Conflict Memorial in 
Veteran’s Park would be an enhancement to the park. 

Section 2 City staff is hereby directed to ensure the use of adequate construction methods and 
materials to ensure the sustainability and appearance of such monument. 

Section 3 City staff is directed to inform the public and the press about the time, date, and location 
of the dedication ceremony, when the details are finalized.   

Section 4 This Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage and 
approval as provided by law.   

 
 Adopted by the Council of the City of Kewanee, Illinois this 8th day of January 2018 
 

ATTEST:   
   
   
Melinda Edwards, City Clerk  Steve Looney, Mayor 

  

 

RECORD OF THE VOTE Yes No Abstain Absent 
Mayor Steve Looney     

Council Member Chris Colomer     
Council Member Andrew Koehler     

Council Member Steve Faber     
Council Member Mike Yaklich     





















 

 


	Agenda
	Monday, January 8, 2018

	CM Memo
	COUNCIL MEETING 17-24
	The City Council met in Council Chambers at 7:00 PM with the Mayor calling the meeting to order and the following answering to roll call:
	NEW BUSINESS

	ANNOUNCEMENTS

	Community Development EOM Report
	D & M
	7-Day
	Weeds
	Misc

	December 2017 ESDA
	Police Department
	Nov 2017 PWD Report
	Warrant List 20180108
	Staff Report -Memorial
	CITY OF KEWANEE
	CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM
	MEETING DATE

	ResVietnamMemorial20180108
	VietnamMemorial
	Vietnam Memorial

